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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

| am pleased to present the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009 | took the
position of Chairman following the reurement of Qin Shun Chao in September 2009 | would hke to
take this opportunity to exprass my sincere gratitude on behalf of the board to Mr Qin for his five years
of service In the Company Mr Qin sadly passed away 1n March 2010

FEINANCIAL RESULTS

Group turnover for the year ended 31 December 2009 increased by 65% to US$23 6 million {2008
USs$14 3 mdhon) Earmings before interest, tax, deprectation and amortization (EBITDA) rose to US$12 0
mulion (2008 US$3 2 million} The profit before taxation was US$10 0 mdlion (2008 US$1 3 million)
after an exceptional item on the gain on disposals of subsidianes of US$6 6 million 15 taken into account
(2008 Us$nil) The profit after taxation was US$9 6 milhon (2008 US$1 1 million) The resulting basic
profit per share was US30 44 (2008 US$0 02)

Qur gross margin, which 1s calculated by deducting the variable cost of sales and the relatively fixed
costs of operating the barges and container terminal from revenue, was U$$7 1 million (2008 U534 5
milien) This substantial increase was as a direct result of higher revenues from both Keen Chance
Terminal and Yinggao Shipping Although in percentage terms the gross margin was maintained at
29 9% of revenue (2008 31 1%)

As of 31 December 20009, the net cash position continued to improve at US$1 4 million (2008 US3$0 4
million) Net cash generated from operating activittes for the pensod was US$7 7 millon (2008 US$2 8
millign) Trade receivables increased to US$2 8 million (2008 US$2 7 million) for the period, in which
the trade debtors increased 5% and the cbligation under finance leases increased 37 6% The net
cash outflow for the perniod of US$S 4 milhon (2008 US3$2 milkon) was impacted by the purchase of
property, plant and equipment

Revenues have grown from both segments of our continuing operations resutting in a 65% overall
increase We disposed of badly performing subsidianies in Sepiember 2009, resulting 1n a gain from
disposals of US$6 6 million As we indicated at the time of that disposal this had the double benefit of
removing a non-profit generating business whilst setuing aside habilities thai sit 1n the disposed group

A combination of increased revenues, continued high gross margin and strong control of costs resulted
in a profit after tax of US$3 0 mdlion excluding the exceptional items of U5$6 6 million, an increase of

200% compared 1o the prior year (2008 US$1 1 mulhion)

The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend (2008 US$nif)
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Despite a reduction 1 market actuvity in the last quarter of year 2009, container terminal revenues of
Us$14 6 million increased by 18 7% compared to the previous year (2008 — US3$12 3 milbon) Overall
there was a reasonable increase in throughput of 14 7%, which was 0 39 mihon TEU (2008 0 34
mithon TEU} Underlying operating profits increased by 3 3% to US$2 3 million (2608 US$2 2 million),
due principally to the impact of stable growth in turnover and a reduction in general and administrative
expenses Operating margins were similar to last year at 16%, although throughput in bulk cargos has
dropped by 28% which was offset by the increase in throughput in containers by 16 8%

Turnoever In barging services has substantially increased by 340% to US$9 million (2008 US$2 1 mitlhion)
reflecting the hgher average number of vessels in our fleet, and our increasingly effective utrlization
of that fleet The vessel operating expenses increased to a total of US$7 7 million compared to US$2 9
militon 1n 2008 mainly as the result of the larger fleet size and the overall increase in the number of
voyages made as well as the increased handling capacity of each vessel The profit margin has grown by
133 9% to 13 7% (2008 loss 40 4%)

OUTLOOK

During the year there were two main elements to the progress Firstly, the excellent developments we
have made in growing our core business Secondly, the rapid growth in carrying capacity of our vessels
in our fleet accelerated the increase in turnover of our barging service The ‘32’ senes vessels each with
a capacity of 228TEU represented the largest size of similar form of vessel runnming the cornidor between
Huangpu and Hong Kong The high carrying capacity of our fleet, coupled with the strength of our
specialist team managing the fleet, means we are well placed to trade through the challenging market
conditions still being expenienced

As our market share n the ndustry 1s relatively low, we beleve there 1s considerable room for growth
in this sector The Group will benefit from the plan of 1ts majority shareholder to construct arcund 10
vessels each with a capaaty of 228TEU each year These vessels will then be leased to the Group With
the benefit of this arrangement, we are now 1n a much stronger positton when pursuing Connecting

Carrier Agreements ("CCA") with the worldwide contamner liner compames
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Although the recent recovery in global markets remains unceriain, the performance of our container
terminal business in the first quarter of year 2010 leads us to believe that steady growth for the
whole year can be anticipated Taking advantage on the lease finance provided by the machinery and
equipment suppher, Sany Group Co Ltd , we have now established a stzong and long term partnership
with them and mast of the profits generated from the terminal operation itself will be used for the
future procurement of machinery and equipment te expand our facihties Duning 2010, we expect to
complete the extension of the adjacent quay, as well as the commencement of operation of the new 45
tonnes quayside container crane This will provide a robust platform for the expansion of throughgut
Orders far the pracurement of three sets of quayside container cranes and four sets of rail-mounted
container cranes have been placed and delwery s expacted progressively by the end of this year With
the permussion granted by the relevant authorities for the extenston of the main quay, the number of
berths at the termuinal will be sigmificantly increased

APPRECIATION

The board would again like tgfthank all staff for the commuiiment, professionalism and loyalty they have
shown guring the last iwelfé months

Laung Suk Ching, Angela
Chairman

2 June 2010
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors submst their report and the financial statements of Yinggao Holdings plc for the year
ended 31 December 2009

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The prnncpal activities of the Group during the year were terminal cperation and barging service
provision

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

Pursuant to a written resolution of the shareholders of the company in writing signed on 24 August

2009, the company's name was changed from Arko Holdings plc 1o Yinggao Holdings plc

REVIEW QF THE BUSINESS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

A review of the business and future developments 1s given in the Charrman’s statement on page 3 to 5
RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The management of the business and the execution of the Group’s strategy are subject to a number of
risks

The key business risks affecting the Group are considered to relate to competition from other shipping
agents and empioyee retention

Competition

The Group operates in a highly competitive market particularly around price and service availlability/
quality This results not only in downward pressure on our margins but also n the nsk that we will not
meet cur customers’ expectations In arder to mitigate this risk, management maonitors market prices on
an ongoing basis so as to keep prices competitive

Employees
The Group's performance depends largely on regional managers and local staff The resignation of key
individuals and the inability to recruit people with the right experience and skills could adversely impact

the Group's results To mitigate these issues, the Group has implemenied schemes linked to the Group's
results that are designed to retain key indwiduals
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS {KPIS)

There has been significant progress in the year on the Group’s overriding objective of revenue growth
The board monitors progress with respect to the Group’s strategy by reference to five KPIs

Performance duning the year, together with historical trend data 1s set out in the following table

2009 2008
Growth in sales (%) 64 78% 31 68%
Gross margin (%) 29 92% 31 11%
Net profit margin (%) 40 66% 7 46%
Net current ratio 1 48 times 173 times
Return on invested capital (%} 26 50% 3 56%

DIVIDENDS

The directors are unable to recommend the payment of a dividend (2008 Nil}

DIRECTORS

The following diectors have held office since 1 January 2009

LEUNG Suk Ching, Angela

LIV Sheng Rong

FENG Yue Ying {Appointed on 26 March 2009)

CHAN Ping Kwan (Appointed on 18 September 2009)
David THOMAS

QIN Shun Chao (Resigned on 18 September 2009)
ZHANG Iing (Resigned on 26 March 2009)
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN THE SHARES OF THE COMPANY

The directars who served the Company during the year together with their benefical interests, including
family holdings, a1 the shares of the Company were as follows

Ordinary shares

At 31 December At 1 January
2009 2009
LEUNG Suk Ching, Angela 870.000 870,000

LIU Sheng Rong - -
QIN Shun Chao - -
CHAN Ping Kwan - -
David THOMAS - -
FENG Yue Ying - -

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

in recognising the need for the highest standards of corporate behaviour and accountability, the
directors of Yinggao Holdings plc support the prinaples of good corporate governance The Company
has appointed an audit committee, which comprises the two independent non-executive dwectors,
Mr Dawvid Thomas and Mr Liu Sheng Rong The primary duties of the audit committee are to review
and supervise the financial reporting and internal control procedures of the Group as well as the
effectiveness and cost of the audit Associate members of Baker Tilly UK Audit LLP reviewing non-audit
services for the Group, but the Audit committee 15 satisfied that their objectivity is not vmpaired by such
work Due to the size of the staff of the Group, i1t has been decided unanimously by the board that the
remuneration committee will be dispensed with for the time being and matters involving any changes to
the remuneration to the directors or senior employees will be determined by the board as a whole (with
no director being invelved in the consideration of his own remuneration)

EMPLOYEES
Group management are commiited to training and motivating staff, and offering promotional prospects

where possible Where appropriate, company information 1s shared with staff, and employees are

encouraged to work towards a continual impravement in the Group’s perfoermance
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DIRECTORS® REPORT

ENVIRONMENT POLICY

The Group 1s commitied 1o operating in an environmentally responsible manner and endeavours 1o
adopt the best practicable means to reduce or eliminate polluting releases to the environment, or in
the disposal of waste products The Group 15 committed to complying with environmental legislative
requiremenis

DIRECTORS' INDEMNITY INSURANCE

The directors have not taken outf an msurance policy to cover directors’ and officers” habilities The
Artcles of Association of the Company permit the Company to indemnify duwectors to the extent
permitted by the Companies Act

SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS

At the date of this report, the Campany had been notified of the following substantial interest in the
shares of the Company

Chin Dynasty Foundation - 1,821,776,422 shares in the Company (92 06%) through Keen iloyd
Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the Briuish Virgin Islands

CREDITOR PAYMENT POLICY

In order te maintain good relationships with major suppliers, 1t is the Group’s policy to settle payment
to creditors within the negotiated credit terms The Group's creditor payment days in 2009 have been
shortened to approximately 12 days (2008 36 days)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Disclosures in respect of the Group’s financial risk objectives and policies are set out in note 25 to the
financial statements
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

STATEMENT AS TO DISCLOSURE INFORMATION TO THE AUDITOR

The directors who were in office on the date of approval of these financial statements have confirmed
that, as far as they are aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the auditor 1s unaware
Each of the directars have confirmed that they have taken all the steps that they cught to have taken
as directors in order {0 make themselves aware of any relevant audit infarmation and to establish that it
has been communicated to the auditor

By ogder of the board

Leung Suk Ch
Chairman

2 June 2010

10 YINGGAO HOLDINGS PLC  Annual Repert 2008 YINGGAQ



STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ Report and the financial statements In

accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare group and company Financial Statements for each
tinancial year The directors are required by the AIM Rules of the London Stock Exchange to prepare
group financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reperting Standards ("IFRS™) as
adopted by the European Union ("EU"} and have efected under Company law 1o prepare the company
financial statements in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU

The financial statements are required by law and IFRS adopted by the EU to present fairly the financial
position of the group and the company and the financial performance of the group The Companies Act
2006 prowvides in relation to such firancial statements that references in the relevant part of that Act to
financial statements giving a true and fair view are references to therr achieving a fair presentation

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied
that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and the company and of the profit

or loss of the group for that period

In preparing the group and company fiancial statements, the directors are required to

a select suitable accounting polictes and then apply them consistently,

b make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

d state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs adopted by the EU,

d prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s inappropriate to presume

that the group and the company will continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting recards that are suffioent to show and
explain the group’s and the company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the group and the company and enable them to ensure that the financal
staternents comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also respensible for safequarding the assets
of the group and the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevenuon and detection
of fraud and other irregularities
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF YINGGAQ HOLDINGS PLC

We have audiied the group and parent company financial statements (“the financial statements™)
on pages 14 to 67 The financial reporting framework that has been applied i their preparation 15
applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Umon and, as regards the parent company financial statements, as apphed in accordance with the
provisions of the Compantes Act 2006

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
company s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no
other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

As more fully explained in the Directors” Responsibilities Statement, the directors are responsible far the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our
responsibibity 15 to audit the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board’s (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors

S5COPE OF THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A descnption of the scope of an audit of financial statements 15 provided on the APB’s website at
www frc org uk/apb scope/UKNP

QUALIFIED OPINION ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARISING FROM LIMITATION IN
AUDIT SCOPE

At 31 December 2008 the conschdated balance sheet included a bank loan of US$1,915,000 and the
consolidated income statement for the year then ended included related finance costs of US$133,000 1n
respect of which we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit ewidence

Included 1in the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 December 2009 15 a gain on
disposal of subsidiaries of US$6,598,000 As a consequence of there being insufficient appropriate audit
evidence n respect of the bank loan and related finance costs referred to above, there was insufficient
appropnate audit evidence available in respect of the gain on disposal

Had this infermation been avallable to us we might have formed a different opinion on the financial
statements
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Except for the financial effecis of any adjustments that might have been found to be necessary had we
been able to obtan sufficient evidence concerning the previous carrying value of the bank loan and
related accrued finance costs, In our opinion

. the financial statements give a true and farr view of the state of the group’s and the parent
company's affairs as at 31 December 2009 and of the group’s profit for the year then ended,

. the group financial statements have been properly prepared In accordance with IFRSs as adopted
by the European Union,

. the parent financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted
by the European Union and as applied 1in accordance with the Companies Act 2006, and

. the financial statements have been prepared In accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006

OPENION ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

In our opsion the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financal year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the finangial statements

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION

In respect solely of the limitation on our work relating to the gain on disposal of subsidiaries, descnbed
above, we have not obtained all the \nformation and explanations that we considered necessary for the
purpose of our audit

We have nothing to report In respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires
us ta report to you if, in our opimon

. adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for
our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us, or

. the parent company finanaal statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns, or

. certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made

64]“;"1"% UK Aud:F LLP  DAVID CLARK

(Sermor Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of BAKER TILLY UK AUDIT LLF, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants
2 Bloomsbury Street
London WC1B 35T

2 June 2010
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in United States dollars)

2009 2008
Notes Uss$:000 1s$'000
Revenue 4 23,563 14,300
Cost of sales {16,513) (9,850}
Gross profit 7,050 4,450
QOther income 5 398 155
Gasn on disposals of subsidiaries 14 6,598 -
Administrative expenses (3,970) (3,114)
Profit from operations 10,076 1,451
Finance costs 6(a) {80) (176)
Profit before taxation 9,996 1,315
Taxation {416} (247)
Profit for the year 9,580 1,068
Attributable to
Qwners of the parent 8,751 360
Non-controliing interests 829 708
9,580 1,068
US cents US cents
Earnings per share
- Basic and diluted 10 0 34 002
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in United States dollars)

2009 2008

Uss$'000 us$'000

Profit for the year 9,580 1,068

Other comprehensive income for the year

Exchange differences ansing cn translation of

foreign operations (3) 1,297

Total comprehensive income for the year 9,577 2,365
Total comprehensive income attnibutable to

Owriers of the parent 8,748 1,323

Non-controlling interests 829 1,042

9,577 2,365

YINGGAQ Annual Report 2009 YINGGAQ HOLDINGS PLC
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BALANCE SHEETS
As at 31 December 2009
(Expressed mn United States dollars)

Compassy Qea..htrohbn No.01366078

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
Notes Uss$'000 us$°'coo uss'oco us$°co0

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Goodwill 1 1,835 1,835 - -
Property, plant and equipment 12 32,086 27,375 - -
Investments m subsidiaries 13 - - 29,435 18,756
Avallable-for-sale investment 15 - 12 - -
33,921 28,222 29.435 18,756
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventones 16 156 137 - -
Trade and other receivables 17 8,203 8,103 1 1
Amounts due from subsidianes - - 294 120
Cash and cash equivalents 18 2,165 780 11 2
10,524 9,020 306 123
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 19 5,318 3,907 93 31
Amounts due 1o subsidiaries - - 2,520 1,916
Obligations under finance leases 20 870 599 - -
Taxation 916 695 - -
7,104 5,201 2,613 1,947
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 3,420 3.819 (2.307) (1,824)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 37.341 33,041 27,128 16,932
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
8ank lgan 21 - 1,915 - -
Obligations under finance {eases 20 408 330 - -
Loans from fellow investors
in subsidiaries 22 718 787 - -
Deferred tax habilites 23 68 - - -
1,194 3032 - -
NET ASSETS 36,147 30,009 27,128 16,932
EQUITY
Share capital 24(a) 14,922 14,922 14,922 14,922
Reserves 11,152 2,010 12,206 2,010
Total equity attnbutable to
owners of the parent 26,074 16,932 27128 16,932
Non-controtling interests 10,073 13,077 - -
TOTAL EQUITY 36,147 30,009 27,128 16,932

The consolidated financial statements on pages 14 to 67 were approved and authonsed for issuc by the
board of directors on 2 June 2010, and signed on its on behalf by

a Feng Yue Ying

Oirector y%‘%%

Leung Suk Ching, An
Drrector
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2009

Attributzble to owners of the parent

{Expressed in United States dolfars)

Moz )
Statutory e ) Nor-
Shaee Share surplus Merger  Exchange Accumufated controlling Total
Group capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total ntarests squity
LISS 000 459000 US§'063 US4 800 US§'600 4s8 800 58000 Us§'600 US5'00
Bakance at 1 fznuary 2008 14,922 15,662 1,681 26 043 1,440 (44,139) 15,609 12 035 27 644
Comprehensive incoms
Profit for the year - - - - - 360 360 708 1,068
Other comprehensive income
Exchange diffrences anging on
transtation of foreign opera 1ons - - 26 - 937 - 963 334 1397
Total comprehensive ingome
for the year - - 2 - 937 360 1323 1,042 2,365
Transactions with owners
Querprewsion in statutory
surplus reserve - - (158) - - 58 - - -
Balance at 31 December 2008
end 1 fanuary 2009 14922 15 662 1,549 26043 2,317 43 621) 15932 13,077 30,009
Comprehensive income
Profit for the year - - - - - 87151 879 829 9,580
Other comprehensive income
Exchange differences anising on
translation of fcreign operavions - - - - (3 - Ef - (3
Disposals of subsidianes - - {1,102} - 394 1,102 39 (3,833) {3438}
Tota! ather comorehensive income
for the year - - {1102) - 391 1102 m (3833 {3442}
Totat comprehensive Income
for the year - - {1,102} - 351 9853 9,142 (3004) 6,138
Transacticns with owners
Transfer of statutory surplus reserve - - i - - 1 - - -
Balance at 31 December 2009 14,922 15,662 564 16,043 2,768 (33.385) 26,014 10,073 36,147
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 December 2009

(Expressed in United States dollars)

{Note n)
Share Share Merger Exchange  Accumulated
Company capital premuim reserve reserve losses Total
US$'000 US$'600 Us$'600 U35'000 US$°000 Us$'000

Balance at 1 January 2008 14,922 15,662 26,043 - (34,844) 21,783
Comprehensive income
Loss for the year - - - - (5,551) {5,551}
Other comprehensive income
Exchange differences ansing

on teanslation - - - 700 - 700
Total comprehensive mcome

far the year - - - 700 {5.551) {4,851)
Balance at 31 December 2008

and 1 January 2009 14922 15,662 26,043 700 {40,395) 16,932
Comprehensive income
Profit for the year - - - - 8,751 8,751
Other comprehensive income
Exchange differences arising

on translation - - - 1,445 - 1,445
Total comprehensive income

for the year - - - 1,445 8,751 10,196
Balance at 31 December 2009 14,922 15,662 26,043 2,145 (31,644) 27,128

Notes

)] Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the law of the People s Repubhc of China {the “PRC™) and the Articles of Assoaation of certain of the
Company s subsidiaries directars of these subsihanes may at thew discretton make appropriations io a statutory surplus
reserve equivalent to 10% of the subsidizries’ net profits Appropnatons may alse be made to statutory public welfare reserve
equwvalent 10 5 ro 10% aof the net profits of these operaung subsidiangs Distanbution of prafits to shareholders can only be

made after such appropriatians

The s-atutory surplus reserve may be used 10 reduce any losses incurred or be capitalised as paid up capizal The use of the
statutosy public welfare reserve 15 restnicted to capital expenditure incurred for s &ff welfare facbities The statutory public
welfare reserve 15 no* avalable for distrbutean

{n The merge* reserve represents the difference between he nominal value of shares of the subsidiary company acquired and
the nominal value of the Company s shares 1ssued 1n 2002
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in United States dollars)

Group 2009 2008
Notes uss$’000 us$'000

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before taxation 9,996 1,315

Adjustments for

- Interest income 5 4} (1)
~ Gain on disposals of subsidiaries 14 (6.598}) -
— Depreciation 6(c) 1,732 1,748
— Finance costs 6{a) 80 176
— Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment  6{(c) 144 3
- Exchange difference 337 (44)
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 5.690 3,197
Increase in inventornes (19) (13)
{Increase)/decrease In trade and other recewables (344) 44
Increase in trade and other payables 2,495 218
Net cash flow generated from operations 7,822 3,446
Income tax paid {(127) (686)
Net cash generated from operating activities 7,695 2,760

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchases of property, plant and equipment (5.730) {1,359)
Proceeds from disposals of property,
plant and equipment 325 -
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale invesiment 12 -
Disposals of subsidiaries 14 {2) -
interest received 1 1
Net cash used in Investing activities (5,394) (1,958)

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayments on obligations under finance leases (837) (275}

Interests paid (80) (176)
Net cash used 1n financing activities (917) {451)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1.384 351
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 780 428
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 1 1
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2,165 780
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in United States dollars)

Company 2009 2008
uss$‘o00 Us53°000

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit/{loss) for the year 8,751 {5,551}
Adjustments for

- Impairment on investments 1n subsidiaries - 5,462

- Reversal of impairment on investments in subsidiaries (9.020) -

- Exchange difference 21 (11}
Operating cash outflow before working

capital changes (248) {100)
Decrease in trade and other receivables - 79
Increase in amounts due from subsidiares (187) (120)
Increase/{decrease) in trade and other payables 58 (113)
Increase in amaunis due to subsidiaries 386 255
Net increase (n cash and cash equivalents 9 i
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 2 1
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 11 2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in United States dollars)

1 GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company s a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom
The registered office of the Company 1s located at 2 Bloomsbury Street, London WC1B 35T Its
principal place of business 1s 1n Hong Kong and the Peoples Republic of China (“PRC"}

Following the annual general meeting of the Company held on 7 August 2009, the Company’s
name was changed to Yinggao Holdings plc

The principal actvities of the Campany and 1ts subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as
the “Group”) are terminal operation and barging services provision

The Company’s shares were admitted to trading on the AIM Market of the London Stock
Exchange These consolidated financial statements are presented in United States Dollars, uniess
atherwise stated, and were reviewed by the Audit Committee and approved for 1ssue by the board
of directors on 2 June 2010

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of preparation and statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statementis have been prepared under the historical cost
convention

The consolidated financial statements are presented n United States dollars (*USD™),
rounded to the nearest thousand, which 1s the presentation currency of the Group

The censolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International

Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Unmion (“IFRSs”}, Interpretations
("IFRICs™) and the Companies Act 2006 applicable to Companies Reporting under IFRSs
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2009
{Expressed 1n United States dollars)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b}

Impact of recently issued IFRSs

The IASB have i1ssued certain new and revised IFRSs and new IFRICs that are first effective or

availlable for early adoption for the current accounting period of the Group

Except as disclosed below, the adoption of the new and rewised IFRSs had no maternal effect
on the conschdated financial statements of the Group for the current or prior accounting
pencds

IAS 1 {revised 2007) "Presentation of financial statements” has introduced a number of
terminology changes (including revised titles for the consclidated financial statements) and
has resulted in a number of changes \n presentation and disclosure However, 1AS 1 (revised
2007) has had no impact on the reported results or financial posihion of the group

IFRS 8 "Operating Segments” 15 a disclosure standard that has resulted in a redesignation of
the Group’s reportable segments (see note 4) and changes in the basis of measurement of
segment profit or foss, segment assets and segment habilities

Amendments to IFRS 7 "Financial Instruments Disclosures — improving disclosures about
financial statements” expand the disclosures required In relation to fair value measurements
in respect of financial instruments which are measured at fair value However, the
amendments to IFRS 7 do not contain any additional disclosure requirements specifically

applicable to the Group's consohdated financal statements

The "Improvements to IFRSs (2008)" compnse a number of minor and non-urgent
amendments to a range for IFRSs which the IASB has issued as an omnibus batch of
amendments There have been no significant changes to the Group's accounting policies as a
result of these amendments

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised standards, amendments or
wmterpretations that have been 1ssued but are not yet effective
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2009
{Expressed i United States dollars)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Impact of recently issued IFRSs (Continued)

IFRSs (Amendments)

IFRSs {Amendments)
IAS 24 (Revised)

IAS 27 (Revised)

IAS 32 (Amendment)
IAS 39 {Amendment)
IFRS 1 (Amendment)
IFRS 2 (Amendment)
IFRS 3 (Revised)

IFRS 9

IFRIC 14 (Amendment)
IFRIC 17

IFRIC 19

L A L L

The applicatton of IFRS 3 {(Rewised) may affect the accounting for business combination for
which the acquisitton date 1s on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period
beginning on or after 1 July 2008 1AS 27 (Revised) will affect the accounting treatment for

Amendments to IFRS 5 as part of Improvements to
IFRSs 2008!

Improvernents to IFRSs 20092

Related Party Disclosures’s

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements’

Ciassification of Rights Issues®

Eligible Hedged Items’

Additional Exemptians for First-time Adopters?

Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transactions?

Business Combinations!

Finanaal Instruments?

Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement®

Distributions Non-cash Assets to Owners!

Extingusshing Finanoial Liabihities with Equity Instrumentss

Effectve for annual penods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

Effective for annual persods beginning on or after 1 July 2009 and 1 January 2010 as appropriate
Effective for annual periods beginming on or after 1 January 2010

Effective for annual pensods beginning or or after 1 February 2010

Effective for annual perscds beginning on or after 1 January 2011

Effective for annual perrods beginning on ar after 1 July 2010

Effective far annual perods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

changes in a parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary

The directors of the Company anticpate that the application of the other new and revised
standards, amendments or Interpretations will have no matenial impact on the consolidated

financial statements
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in United States dollars)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(A

(d)

Basis of consohdation

The consohidated financial statements incorporate the financial statemenis of the Company
and entties controiled by the Company (s subsidiaries) Control 1s achieved where the
Company has the power tc govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits fram its activities

The results of subsidiznes acquired or disposed of dunng the year are included in the
consolidated income statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective
date of disposal, as appropriate

Where necessary adjustments are made to the finantial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies into hine with those used by other members of the Group

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on conselidauion

Minority interests In the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein Minority Interests in the net assets consist of the amount
of those mnterests at the date of the cniginal business combinatton and the minonty's share
of changes in equity since the date of the combination Losses applicable to the minornity in
excess of the minonty's interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests
of the Group except to the extent that the minonty has a binding obligation and 15 able to

make an additional investment to cover the losses

As permitted by Seciion 408 of the Companies Act 2006, a separate income statement
is not presented in respect of the Company The profit of the Company for the year i1s
US$8,751,000 {2008 lgss of US$5,551,000)

Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the purchase method
The consideration or cost of the acquisition 1s measured at the aggregate of the far
values, at the date of exchange, of assets gwven, hablities incurred or assumed, and eqguity
instruments 1ssued by the Group in exchange for contral of the acquiree, plus any costs
directly atinbutable to the business combination The acquiree’s identifizble assets, habilities
and contingent liabifities that meet the conditions for recognition under IFRS 3 "Business
Combinations™ are recognised at thewr fair values at the acquisiion date
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in United States dollars)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

{d} Business combinations (Continued)

(e)

Goodwill anising on acquisition 15 recognised as an asset and initially measured at cost, being
the excess of the cost of the business combination over the Group's interest in the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, habilities and contingent liabilitres recogmised If, after
reassessment, the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree's identifiable assets,
habilities and contingent habilities exceeds the cost of the business combination, the excess
15 recognised immediately in profit or loss

The interest of munonty shareholders In the acquiree 15 initially measured at the minonty's
proportion of the net fair value of the assets, liabibties and cantingent habiities recognesed

Goodwil|

Goodwill ansing on an acquisition of a business i1s carned at cost less any accumulated

impairment losses

For the purposes of imparrment testing, goodwill arising from an acqusition 15 allocated to
each of the relevant cash-generating uruis, that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the acquisitton A cash-generating umit to which goodwill has been allocated 15 tested
for impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication that the unit may be impaired
For goodwill anising on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-generating umit to which
goodwill has been allocated 1s tested for impairment before the end of that financial year
When the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit 1s less than the carrying amount
of the unit, the impairment loss 15 allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of
the carrying amount of each asset tn the unit Any impairment loss for goodwill 1s recognised
directly in profit or loss An impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
pernods

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill
capitahsed Is included in the determination of the amount of profit or toss on disposal
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in United States dollars}

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

)

Property, plant and equipment

Expenditure on additions and improvements s capitalised as incurred Non-current assets are
tncluded at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction 1in progress, are depreciated
over therr estimated useful lives on a straight line basis The following annual rates of
depreciation have been used

Land and buildings 20-30 years
Plant and machinery 10-20 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5-10 years
Motor vehicles 5-10 years
Vessels 10 years

Construction 1n progress represents a bullding under construction, which 1s stated at cost
less any impairment Cost compnises the direct cost of construction

Both the useful kfe of an asset and its residuat value, f any, are reviewed annually

The carrying amounts of other property, plant and equipment are reviewed for indications of
impairment at each balance sheet date An impairment loss 1s recogrised to the extent that
the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, 1s more
than its recoverable amount The recoverable amount of an asset, or of the cash generating
unit to which 1t belongs, 1s the greater of its net selling price and value in use In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are disccunted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessmenis of time value of money and
the risks specific to the assets An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in estimates used to determine the recoverable amount

Gains or losses ansing from the retirement or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2009
{Expressed in United States dollars)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(g) Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, 1s or contains a lease
if the Group determines that the arrangement conveys a nght to use a specfic asset or
assets for an agreed period of time In return for a payment or a seres of payments Such a
determination 1s made based on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease

{1}  Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer to the Group
substanually all the risks and rewards of ownership are dassified as being held under
finance leases Leases which do not transfer substantally all the nsks and rewards of
ownership to the Group are classified as operating leases, with the exception that land
held for own use under an operating lease, the fair valee of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building situated thereon at the inception of the
lease, 15 accounted for as being held under a finance lease, unless the buillding s also
clearly held under an operating lease For these purposes, the inception of the lease
Is the time that the lease was first entered Iinto by the Group, or taken over from the
previous lessee

{11) Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance leases, the amounts
representing the fair value of the leased asset, or, If lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, of such assets are included in property, plant and equipment
and the corresponding habilittes, net of finance charges, are recorded as oblhigations
under finance leases Depreciation 1s provided at rates which write off the cost of the
assets over the term of the relevant lease or, where it 15 likely the Group will obtain
ownership of the asset, the hfe of the asset, as set out In note 2(f) Impairment losses
are accounted for in accordance with the accounting pohicy as set out in note 2(f)
Finance charges imphcit in the lease payments are charged to profit or loss over the
period of the leases so as to produce an approximately constant penodic rate of charge
on the remaining balance of the obligations for each accounting period Contingent
rentals are charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed In United States dollars)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(g)

(h)

()

Leased assets (Continued)

(111) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases, payments made
under the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the accounting
perniods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis 15 more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset Lease
incentives received are recogrised in profit or loss as an ntegral part of the aggregate
net lease paymentis made Contingent rentals are charged te profit or loss in the
accounting pertod in which they are incurred

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are enuties controlled by the Group Control exists when the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from 1ts actwvities In assessing control, potenual voting nights that presently are exercisable
are taken into account

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost fess

impairment losses

Available-for-sale investments

Investments held for non-trading purposes are classified as available-for-sale investments
At each balance sheet date the fair value 1s remeasured, with resultant gain or loss being
recognised directly 1in equity, except foreign exchange gains and losses in respect of
manetary items such as deby secunities which are recogmised directly in profit or loss Where
these investments are interest-bearing, interest calculated using the effective interest method
1s recognised 1n profit or loss When these mvesiments are derecognised, the cumulative gain
or loss previously recognised directly in equity 1s recognised in profit or loss
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in United States dollars)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(0

)]

Available-for-sale investments {Continued)

When there I1s objective evidence that available-for-sale investments are impaired, the
cumulative loss that has been recogrused directly in equity 1s removed from equity and s
recognised n profit or loss The amount of the cumulative loss that s recogmsed in profit
or loss 1s the difference between the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and
amaortisation) and current fair value, less any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss

Impairment losses recogmised in profit or foss in respect of available-for-sale investments are
not reversed through profit or loss Any subsequent increase in the fair value of such assets
1s recagrised directly in equity

Impairment losses in respect of avalable-for-sale debt investments are reversed f the
subsequent increase n fair value can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised Reversals of impairment losses in such circumstances are
recognised in profit or loss

Inventaries

Inventories are carned at the lower of cost and net realisable value

Cost 1s calculated using the weighted average cost formula and comprises all costs of
purchase, costs of converston and other costs incurred in bringing the inventones to therr

present location and condition

Net realisable value 15 the estimated selling price 1n the ordinary course of business iess the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale

When nveniories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventones 5 recogmised as an
expense In the period in which the related revenue s recognised The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised as
an expense In the period the wnte-down or loss occurs The amount of any reversal of
any wnie-down of inventones 1s recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories

recogmised as an expense in the period 1n which the reversal occurs
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in Urited States dollars)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED}

(k)

{n

{m)

{n}

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are imtially recogrised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortsed cost less impairment losses for bad and doubtful receivables, except where the
recevables are interest-free loans made to related parties without any fixed repayment terms
or the effect of discounting would be rmmatenal In such cases, the recevables are stated at
cost less s/mpairment losses for bad and doubtful debts

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial asset and the estimated future cash flows, discounted
where the effect of discounting 1s matenal

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposiis with banks
and other financial insututians, and shori-term, hghly liquid investments that are readsly
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an wnsignificant nsk of
changes in value, having been within three months of matunty at acquisition

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value Trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting weuld be immatenal,
in which case they are stated at cost

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recogrused imitially at fawr value less attnbutable transaction
costs Subsequent to mitial recognition, interest-beaning barrowings are stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount intually recogrised and redemption value
being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the berrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective interest method
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in United States doliars)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

{o) Revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration receved or recewvable Provided it

1s probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if

apphcable, can be measured reliably, revenue 1s recogmised in profit or loss as follows

Service Income comprises the value of sales in the year in respect of the operation of the

terminal and provision of barging services rendered to the customers which 1s taken to be

the pcint in time when the customer has accepted the services and the related risks and

rewards been transferred

(p) Employee benefits

()

()

Salarnes, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year
in which the associated services are rendered by employees Where payment or
settlement 1s deferred and the effect would be matenal, these amounts are stated at
their present values

The employees of the subsidiaries sn the PRC are members of the state-sponsored
central retirement benefit scheme operated by the local municipal government in the
PRC The subsidiaries are required to contribute, based on a certain percentage of the
payroll costs, to the central retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits The only
abligation of the group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme s 1o make the
required contrnbuttons under the scheme and such contrnibutions are charged to the
consolidated income siatement as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the pension scheme

{q) Translation of foreign currencies

{1

Functional and presentation currency

lems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the pnimary econamic environment in which the entity operates
(the "functional currency”} The consolidated financial statements are presented in USD
for the convenience of the readers, which is different from the functienal currency of
the Company which 1s British Pound
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2009
{Expressed in United States dollars)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(q) Translation of foreign currencies {Continued)

(r)

(1) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions duning the year are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates Monetary assets and liabihties denominated In
foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance
sheet date Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured 1n terms of histonical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates MNon-monetary assets and liabihties denominated 1n foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was determined

(i) Group companies

The results of the subsidiary company tn the PRC are translated into United States
dollars at the exchange raies approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the transactions Balance sheet iterns are translated into United States dollars
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date The resulting exchange
differences are recognised directly In a separate component of equity

On disposal of a2 foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the exchange differences
recognised in equity which relate to that forewgn operation 1s included in the calculation
of the profit ar loss on disposal

Income tax

Income tax for the year compnises current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities Current tax and movements In deferred tax assets and habilites are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to items recogmised 1n other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are

recognised in other comprehensive income or directly recogrised in equity respectively
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in United States dollars)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(r)

(s)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax 15 the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years

Deferred tax assets and habihities arise from deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the carrying amounts of assets and habihties for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases Deferred tax assets also anise from unused
tax losses and unused tax credits

Apart from differences which anise on imtial recogmition of assets and kabilites, all deferred
tax habihities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it i1s probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be uulised, are recognised

The amount of deferred tax recogrised i1s measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and lrabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacied at the balance sheet date Deferred tax assets and labilities
are not discounted

Provisions and contingent habilities

Provisions are recognised for other lrabilities of unceriain uming or amount when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation anising as a result of a past event, it s prabable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a rehable estimate
can be made

Where the time value of money 1s matenal, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the cbligation

Where 1t s not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obhgation 1s disciosed as a contingent habihty,
unless the probabibity of outflow of economic benefits s remote Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent habilites unless the probabiity of outflow of
economic benefits s remote
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in United States dollars)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(t)

(u)

Related parties

For ihe purposes of these consolidated financial statements, a party 15 considered to be

related to the Group if

(1}

()

(ne)

(v)

v)

v

the party has the ability, direcily or \ndirectly through one or more intermediaries, to
control the Group or exercise sigmificant influence over the Group in making financial
and operating policy decisions, or has joint control over the Group,

the Group and the party are subject to common control,

the party i1s an associate of the Group or a joint venture mn which the Group 15 a
venturer,

the party 1s 3 member of key management personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent, or a close family member of such an individual, or I1s an entity under the
control, joint control or significant influence of such indivduals,

the party 1s a close family member of a party referred to in (1) or 15 an entity under the
control, joint control or significant influence of such individuals, or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan which s for the benefit of employees of
the Group or of any enuty that is a related party of the Group

Close family members of an indiwvidual are those farmily members who may be expected to

influence, or be influenced by, that indwvidual in their dealings with the entity

Going concern

The Group's business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future

performance and position are set out in the Chairman’s statement Note 25 to the financial

statements sets out the Group's financial nsk management policies, and 1ts exposure to

crecit risk and hquidity nsk
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2009
{Expressed in United States dollars)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(u) Going concern {Continued)

The Directors have assessed the financial risks facing the business, and compared this sk
assessment to the net current assets position The Directors have also reviewed relationships
with key customers and are satishied that the appropriate contracts and contingency plans
are in place The directors have prepared income statement and cash flow forecasts to assess

whether the Group has adequate resources for the foreseeable future

The diectors consider that the Group has adequate resources to continue 1n operational
existence for the foreseeable future For this reason, they continue to adopt the going
concern basis in prepanng the consohdated financial statements

3  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are currently evaluated and are based on historical experience and

other factors Including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under

tha circumstances Apart from information disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements,

the following disclosures summarise (1) estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk

of causing a2 matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and labiities within the

next financial year and (2) significant judgements made in the process of applying the Group's

accounting policies

0]

Income taxes

The Group 15 subject to income taxes in the PRC, Hong Kong and the United Kingdem
Significant judgement 1s required In determining the provision for income taxes There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultumate tax determination 1s uncertain
during the ordinary course of business The Group recagnises liabilities for anticipated tax
audit ssues based on esumates of whether additional taxes will be due Where the final tax
outcome of these matters 1s different from the amounts that were nitially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period 1n which

such determination 1s made
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed 1n United States dallars)

3

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(n

Provision for doubtful receivables

The Group provides for doubtful recewvables based on an assessment of the collectibility
of trade recevables Provisions for doubtful recewvables are appled to trade and other
receivables where events or changes in crcumstances indicate that the balance may not
be collectible The identification of doubtful recevables requires the use of judgments and
estimates Where the expectation 1s different from the ariginal estimates, such difference will
impact carrying value of receivables and doubtful debt expenses in the period 1n which such
estimate has been changed

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

The principal activities of the Group are the provision of logistics and terminal operation together

with other related services including sea freight forwarding and barge hire

(a)

Segment results, assets and habilities

The Group has adopted IFRS 8 "Operating Segments” with effect from 1 lanuary 2009 IFRS
8 15 a disclasure standard that requires operating segments to be i1dentfied on the basis of
internal reports about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief
operaiing decision maker for the purpose of allocating resources to segments and assessing
their performance In contrast, the predecessor Standard {IAS 14 "Segment Reporting”)
required an entity to :dentfy two sets of segments (business and geographical) using a
risks and returns approach In the past, the Group’s primary reporting format was business
segments The application of IFRS 8 has resulted in a redesignation of the Group’s reportable
segments as compared with the primary reportable segments determined in accordance with
|AS 14

Specifically, in prior years, segment information reported externally was analysed on the
basis of the types of goods supplied and services provided by the Group's operating divisions
{1e terminal and barging services, trading and others and mining) However, information
reported to the chief operating decision maker 1s more speaifically focused on the category
of customer for each type of goods and services The principal categories of customers for
these goods and services are terminal serwices, barging services, trading and others and
mining
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4  REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING {CONTINUED)

{a)

YINGGAQ Anrual Report 2009 YINGGAO HOLDINGS PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2009
{Expressed in United States dollars)

Segment results, assets and llabihities {Continued)

Information regarding the above segments 15 reported below Amounts reported for the prior
year have been restated to conform 1o the reguirements of IFRS 8

Terminal sernices Bargeng services Trading and others Muung Total
Group 009 3 pii] 0 pli ] et pii] 103 008 bl
53 900 IR S5 000 USTECO Ussnae ush 600 Ussar  Ua ol uss'o0o st
Ryt from o e d usiomens 14 545 12352 9017 1943 - - - - 3,563 14400
Repaortable segment revenua 14,546 13192 9,017 I8 - - - - 23,363 14396
Reportable seqment profitifoss) 2,689 1481 1301 1817) (1] (163} [t} - 1478 4%
Faance w055 {18 43 1] - - i3 - - 1] {i78)
Taaugr [348) i} (69) - - - - - {416) 247
1263 15 1213 {87 My (<56} L) - 182 1168

Ganon duposals of < Bordiatey

s 2 14) 6,598 -
Priion “eyea 9580 168
Seporiable segment asiels s B 3401 47 HilH 14 3 - W5 B
Repar bde seemant bt g s 4033 1m 438 1] 361 bri] 10 8238 813

For the purposes of momtoring segment performance and allocating resources between

segments

. all assets are allocated to reportable segments Assets used jointly by reportable

segments are allocated on the basis of the revenues earned by individual reportable

segments, and

. all habilties are allocated 10 reportable segments Liabihties for which reportable

segmenis are Jointly liable are allocated In proportion to segment assets
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed 1 United States dollars)

4  REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

{b) Other information

Termunal services Barging sernces Trading and others Muning Total
009 pit b} 8 009 03 1009 1008 2009 008
USS000  USHOOC  USSAn0  WLhOOR  USSOn0 USHCOD  ussO0 USSOAD  USSO000 uUSECng

Capual expendcy & 5475 134 1,436 P - 2 1 - 6,912 3183
Deprecaugr 1383 1438 &5 12 04 03 - - 1,132 1743
Lass o0 disposals of propers

e aed gt L] - - 3 - - - - Y] E

(¢} Geographic information

The following table sets out information about the geographical location of (1} the Group's
revenue from external customers and (1) the Group's properties, planis and egquipment
and goodwil! (“specified non-current assets”) The geographical locations of customers
are based on the locations at which the services are provided or the goods delivered
The geographical locations of the specified non-current assets are based on the physical
locations of the assets, in the case of property, plant and equipment and the locations of the
operations to which they are ailocated, in the case of goodwill

Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
2009 2008 2009 2008
us$'000 Us53%'000 uss'ooo Us$'006
Hang Kong 9,017 2,048 3071 2,477
Mainland China 14,546 12,252 30,850 26,733
23,563 14,300 33,921 29,210

(d) Information about major customers

For the year ended 31 December 2009, there was one customer who accounted for over
10% of total revenue with revenue of US$5,573,000 related to barging services segment

For the year ended 31 December 2008, there was one customer who accounted for over
10% of total revenue with revenue of U5$2,045,000 related to terminal services segment
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2009
{Expressed in Umited States dollars}

5 OTHER INCOME

2009 2008
uss$’00d0 us$'aog
Exchange gains - 44
Bad debts recovery — an other receivables 39 -
Bank interest income 1 1
Qthers 6 110
398 155
6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
Profit before taxation s stated after charging
2009 2008
Uss'000 Us$'000
{a} Finance costs
Interests on
- Finance leases 80 43
— Bank loan - 133
80 176
2009 2008
us$'000 Us$'000
(b) staff costs {including directors’ remuneration)
Wages and salaries
— included in cost of sales 1,872 1,681
—incfuded in administrative expenses 764 635
QOther pension costs 36 18
Cther stafi weltare 14 3
Social security costs 3 i
2,689 2,338

Other than specified, staff costs are included in administrative expenses in the consolidated
Income statement
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressad in United States dollars)

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED)

2009
Number of staff

2008
Number of staff

The average monthly number of persons
(including directors) employed by the Group
duning the year was

Management and administration 42 40
Sales and distribution 15 17
Operations 421 379
478 436
2009 2008
Us$'000 Us$'000
{c) Otheritems
Fees payable to Baker Tilly UK Audit LLP for
the statutory audit of the parent and
consolidated annual financial statements 35 34
Fees payable 10 associates of the Company’s
auditers for the statutory audit of
the Company's subsidiaries 43 41
Depreciation 1,732 1,748
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 144 3
Exchange losses 337 -
Rentals under operating leases
- land and buidings 186 151
- barges and contamners 727 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2609
(Expressed in United Staies dollars)

7  TAXATION

The amount of income tax expense charged to the consolidated income statement represents

2009 2008
Uss$‘000 Us3'000
Current tax
- overseas tax for the year 348 247
Deferred tax (note 23)
- current year 68 -
416 247

The actuzl tax expense can be reconcled to the profit before taxation in the consohidated income
staterment as follows

2009 2008
us$°000 Us$'000
Profit before taxation 9,996 1,315
Noticnal tax at the standard rate of corporation tax
in the UK of 28% (2008 28%} 2,799 3638
Effects of
Different tax rates on overseas earnings (447) (173)
Expenses not deducuble for tax purposes 233 134
Non-taxable tncome (2.092) (31}
Temporary differences not recognised (n (14)
Uuhsation of tax losses previously not recognised (76) (43)
Addiuon to tax losses - 7
Change in tax rate - ()
Tax charge for the year 416 247
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2009
{Expressed in United States dollars)

7

TAXATION (CONTINUED)

In respect of subsidianes operating in Hong Kong, no provision for Hong Kong profits tax are
provided as there are sufficrent tax losses brought forward to set off against current year's
assessable profit

Subsidiaries operating 1n the PRC are subject to Enterpnse Income Tax ("EIT") at a rate of 25%
However, the Company’s subsidiary in Guangzhou 1s now subject to a preferential tax rate of 20%
as described below Others had tax losses brought forward from previous years

On 16 March 2007, the National People’s Congress passed the Corporate Income Tax Law of the
PRC (the "Tax Law") Under the Tax Law, the EIT tax rate applicable to the Company's subsidiary
in Guangzhou 1s increased from 15% to 25% progressively within five years fram 1 January 2008
(2008 18%, 2009 20%, 2010 22%, 2011 24%, 2012 25%)} The Tax Law has been appled
when measuring the Group’s current tax payable as at 31 December 2009 and 2008

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Included in staff costs are amounts paid to directors for services during the year

2009 2008
uss000 Us$'000

Directors’ remuneration
— Burectors’ emoluments - salanes 123 130
~ Directors’ emoluments — pension ¢osts 4 1
127 131

DIVIDEND

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in United States dollars)

10 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic and diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the earnings attributable to owners
of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue dunng the years ended
31 December 2009 and 2008 respectively

2009 2008
Profit attributable to owners of the parent (US$'000) 8.751 360
Weighted average number of shares in i1ssue 1.978.895,139 1,978,895,139
Basic and diluted earnings per share (US cents) 044 002
11 GOODWILL
L

Group 2009 2008

Us5°000 Us$'000
Cost
At 1 January 22,807 22,806
Disposal of subsidiaries {11,967) -
Exchange realignment - 1
At 31 December 10,840 22,807
Impairment
At 1 January 20,972 20,872
Disposal of substdiaries {11,967) -
At 31 December 9,005 20,972
Carrying values
At 31 December 1,835 1,835
At 1 January 1,835 1,834
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in United States doltars)

11

GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill ansing from an acquisiton 15 allocated to
individual cash generating units ("CGUs") that are expecied to benefit from the business
combination At the balance sheet date, the carrying value of goodwill (net of accumulated
impairment losses) 1s allocated to the following CGUs

2009 2008
Uss$'0c0o Us$'000
Terminal services 1,835 1,835

During the year ended 31 December 2009, management of the Group determines that there i1s no
impairment {2008 US$ml} of any goodwill of its CGUs

The recoverable amount of the termunal services CGU has been determined based on a value in
use calculation That calculauon uses cash flow projections based on financal budgets approved
by management covering z five-year period, and a discount rate of 10% (2008 10%) The key
assumptions for the value in use calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows
which include budgeted sales and gross margin, such estimation 15 based on the unit’s past
performance and management’'s expectations for the market development Management beheves
that any reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate
carrying amount of the terminal services unit 1o exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of that
unit
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in United States dollars)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Furmiture,
Land and Plantand  fuxtures and O storage Mator Construction

GROUP buldings  machinery  equipment tanks Vessels velicles  in progress Total

US$ 000 Us$ 060 U35'000 USS 000 US$ 000 4SS 000 US5'000 USss 000
Cost
A1 Januasy 2008 13,624 27 636 3,783 173 2126 262 879 64114
Redzssificaon 9 133 55 - - {82) - -
Additions 1313 779 39 - P2} & 643 3,183
Dispaosals (val} - {4) - - - - (i
Transfer - 985 - - - - (945} -
Exchange sezhgrment 1305 463 {109} - - 3 n 3132
At 31 Becember 2008 2764 30006 85649 173 2,450 k3] 554 70378
Additions n 4145 65 - 1231 1m 1346 6912
Disposals - - 19} {7y (324 3 - (509)
Disposals of subsidianes {6 238) {16 203) (6 789} - - [F22)} - {29 451)
Transfer 2 - - - - - 2 -
Exchange szahgrment ! 2 - - 1 n - 3
At 31 December 2009 21,400 17,943 1,929 - 3,358 169 1,933 47,313
Depreceation
At 1 january 2008 10 793 19 343 3015 13 848 691 20 39733
Rectassifica ron 879 126 (13 - - (26} - -
Charge 1or the year {No.2) [£3] 794 142 - 213 53 - 1,748
Written-back on disposal 27 - [t} - - - - (28)
Exchange reafignment 1852 (106) 147} - {1 17 200 1545
At 31 December 2008 t3157 20067 7958 13 1,060 ) - 43003
Charge for the year (Mo a) 600 712 136 - 243 4l - 1732
Writien tack on disposal - - 2 {13) 22 o - (40}
Dispasaks of subsiclanes {6228) (6 205} (6 784) - - {123 - {29 458)
Exchange reakgnment 1 1 - - - - - 2
At 31 December 2009 1,530 4,575 1,306 - 1,281 555 - 15,247
Carrying values
At 31 Dacember 2009 13870 13113 614 - mm m 1,938 32,088
At 31 December 2008 14,457 5919 693 160 1390 142 594 27,375
#3 31 Decernber 2007 12825 23313 163 i60 1278 11 859 24376

Note Of the depreciatian charge for the year US$1 Q57 000 {2008 US$1 087 000) 15 included in cost of sales anc
U3s$675 000 (2008 USS661 000) 1s included 1n administrative expenses 1in the consohdated icome statement
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 Decernber 2009
(Expressed in United States dollars)

12

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

The net book values of property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are as follows

2009 2008

uss$’000 us$’'oco

Land and buildings 13,870 14,457
Plant and machinery 3.175 1,854
Motor vehicles 161 65

17,206 16.376

At 31 December 2009, the carrying values of land and buildings, plant and machinery and
furniture, fixtures and equipment are further analysad as follows

Terminal Others Total
Uss$ 000 us$'000 Us$'000

Land
— short lease 1,828 - 1,828
— unspecified leases 1,378 - 1,378
3,206 - 3,206
Buildings 10,664 - 10,664
Land and buildings 13,870 - 13,870
Plant and machmery 13,287 - 13,287
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 125 575 700

The Group has obtained land use right and real estates certificates on the terminal’s land under
short leases from the lacal land authority Land with a value of approximately US$1,378,000 held
under unspecified leases of the terminal 1s land held for industrial use for which the relevant tand
use rnight certificate has not been obtained and thus the term of the fease has yet 1o be agreed
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in United States dollars)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Under the law of the PRC, land held for industrial use and the buildings without buillding
ownership certficates can only be used for identified industrial purposes The Group has not
obtamned any bullding ownership certificates in respect of the buldings of the Group The Group
cannot legally sell or martgage such properties until the relevant land taxes have been pad to the
local land authonty However there 1s no binding agreement for the taxes to be paid

13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Company 2009 2008
Uss$'o000 Us$'000

Unlisted shares, at cost

At 1 January 56,015 56,015
Exchange realignment 4,956 -
At 31 December 60,971 56,015
Impairment

At 1 January 37,259 31,797
Charge for the year - 5,462
impatrment loss reversed In profit and loss (9.020) -
Exchange realignment 3,297 -
At 31 December 31,536 37,259

Carrying values
At 31 December 29,435 18,756

At 1 January 18,756 24 218

YINGGAQ Annual Report 2003 YINGGAG HOLBINGS PLC

47



48

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2009

{Expressed in United States dollars)

13

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2009, the Company held 100% of the ordinary shares of Yinggao Investments

Limited {formerly known as Arko Offshore Holdings Limited), a company incorporated in the

British Virgin Islands ("BVI"}, whose principal activity was that of an investment holding company

Yinggao Investments Limited had the following subsidiary undertakings

Equity interests

attributable to
Name the Group Principal activities Place of incorporation
2009 2008
Yinggao Enercy Limited * # 100% 100%  Investment nolding BvI
Yinggao Consultants Limited * * 100% i00%  Providing management services  8Y1
Yinggao Pacific Limited * ¥ 100% 100%  lnvestment holding vl
Sanko Minera! Limited 100% 100%  Sub-letung of yach=s, BVt
ships and vessels
Yinggao Shipping (H K ) limited * 100% 100%  Prowiding logistics and related Hong Kong
services
Yinggao Shipping Limited ("YSL) 100% -~ Prowiding logistics and related Hong Kong
services
Yinggao Ship Chartening Lumited 100% - Barge hinng and agency services  Hong Kong
Arko Terminal Limited ("ATL"} * 100% 100%  Investment holding Republic of Seychellas
Keen Chance Terminal Limited {"KCT™ 40% A40%  Investing in and operaton of fRC
a terminal and providing
logistics services
fupan Sanko Mining Limi-ed 0% 70%  Dormant PRC
Detatls of subsidiaries disposed of in the year are set out in note 14
. Directly held by Yinggzo Investments Limited Al other subsicianies are inoirectly held
4 During the year the group has changed the name of certain of 1ts subsidiaries as listed below by passing relevant board

resolutions 1n each of the group compantes 'o match thew core businesses with present operaung actwities in terminal
operabion and barging service operation in the FRC

Present names

Yinggao Investments Limited
Yinggao Energy Limited
Yinggao Consultants Lumited
Yinggao Pacfic Lirmited
Yinggao Shipping (H K ) Limited

Previous names

Arko Qffshore Holdings Limited
Arko Engrgy Limrred

Arko Consultants Limited

Arko Pacific Limied

Arko Shipping Limited

YINGGAD HOLDINGS PLC

Effective Date

09 June 2009
11 June 2009
09 June 2009
09 June 2009
12 lune 2003
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed n United States dollars)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

The 40% equity interest in KCT previously held by Keen Lloyd Energy Limited ("KLEL"), a
subsidiary of Keen Lloyd Holdings Limited (*KLHL"), has been transferred to ATL The transfer had
been submutted for registration to the relevant PRC authonities

Pursuant 1o an agreement dated 5 Apnl 2002 entered into between KLEL and Miaotou Ecanomig
Development (GZ) Company Limited ("MEDCL"), (a shareholder of KCT who held a 30%
equity Interest In KCT), MEDCL agreed to vote 1n accordance with the instructions of KLEL at
board meetings in view of its indebtedness to KLEL, for an approximate sum of RMB78 milhion
{equivalent to US$9 4 million), and KLEL mntended to convert the outstanding loan into registered
capital of KCT

On 22 Apnl 2003, KLEL entered inio a shareholder agreement with MEDCL and Harbour Econamic
Development Company Lirited {"HEDCL™), another sharehalder in KCT, whereby all parties
agreed that MEDCL has unconditionally transferred the authornty empowered to its directors
representative (ncluding their rights and obligations) to KLEL untl KLEL transferred the 40%
equity mnterests in KCL to ATL to reiterate the aforesaid agreement dated S Apnl 2002

Cn 16 May 2003, a supplemental agreement was entered into between ATL, KLEL, MEDCL and
HEDCL by which all parties agreed that the above authority transferred to KLEL would be vested in
ATL after KLEL completed the transfer of equity interests in KCT to ATL

In accardance with the terms and conditions set out in the above agreements, KLEL effectively
controls the board of KCT and this arrangement has been confirmed by the shareholders of KCT
In 2002, a Hong Kong lawyer expressed his view that KCT 1s a subsidiary of KLEL under Hong
Kong Company Law Control of KLEL has been transferred to ATL and therefore in the opmion of
the directors, KCT 1s a subsidiary of ATL under the Companies Act 2006

KCT will be a legal subsidiary of ATL immediately upon the registration of the transfer of the 40%
of equity in KCT from KLEL to ATL
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in United States dollars}

14 DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 4 September 2009, the Group disposed of i1ts 100% equity inierest In Long Prospenty
Industrsal Limited ("LPIL"} to Winko Foundation Limited ("WFL"), a wholly cwned subsidiary of
KLHL, at a consideration of US$1

On 23 March 2009, the Group disposed of its 100% equity interest in Arko Satellite Limited
("ASL") to a third party at a consideration of US$1,000

In March 2009, the business icence of Arko Silicon (Huber) Limited ("ASHL") was de-registered by
the PRC Business Bureau The Group has therefore written-off 1ts 100% interests in ASHL

The conschdated net habilkites of LPIL and its subsidiary (1 e Changzhou Power Development
Company Limited (“CPDCL")), net assets of ASL and net assets of ASHL disposed of were as

follows
LPIL and 1ts

subsidiary ASL ASHL Total

Us$'000 Us$ 000 Us$'000 Us3'000

Property, plant and equipment - - 1 1
Other receivables 22 - - 22
Cash and cash equivalents 2 - 1 3
Trade and other payables (1,200) - - (1,200)
Bank lcan (1,915) - - (1,915)
Loans from fellow investors (69) - - (69)
(3.160) - 2 (3,158)

Minonty interest {(3,833) - - (3.833)
Exchange loss realtsed 394 - - 384
(6,599} - 2 {6.587)

Gainf{loss} on disposals 6,599 1 (2) 6,598
Total consideration - 1 - 1
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2G09
(Expressed in United States dollars}

14 DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

LPIL and its

subsidiary ASL ASHL Total
Us$'oco Us$'000 Us$'000 Uss$'o00

Net cash inflowHouiflow)

arising on disposals

Cash consideration received - 1 - 1

Casn and cash equivalents
disposed of (2) - (1) (3}
(2} 1 (1) (2)

15 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT

Group 2009 2008
Us$000 Us$'000
Unlisted i the PRC - 12

The above investment represents 20% of the ordinary shares 1in a company incorporated n

the PRC of China, Guangzhou Tenglar Shipping Agents Company Limited, at consideration of

RMB1C0,00C (approximately US$12,000) The assocate s prinapally engaged in provision of

logistics and related services It 1s not treated as an investment n associate on the ground of its

immater:al amount The investment was disposed of at book value during the year

16 INVENTORIES

Inventories represent consumables There was no significant difference between the replacement

cost and the value shown in the balance sheet
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in United States dollars)

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Group Company

2009 2008 2009 2008

Us5'000 Us$ 000 Uss$'000 Us$'000

Trade recevables 2,875 2,721 - -

Less allowance for doubtful debts (86) {65) = -

2,789 2,656 - -

Deposiis 852 811 1 -

Prepayments 275 585 - 1

Other recevables 1,352 163 - -
Amounts due from fellow investors

of a subsidiary 2,935 2,915 - -

Amounts due from related
companies {Note 26) - 943 - -
8,203 8,103 1 ]

Trade receivables are due within 30 days from the date of billing Further detals on the Group’s
credit policy are set out in note 25(a)

The maximum amount outstanding from related companies dunng the year was US$943,000

These amounts are interest free, unsecured and repayable on demand
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For ihe year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in United States dollars)

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)
(a} Ageing analysis

The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade recevables, net of allowance for doubtiul debts,
that are neither indvidually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as follows

2009 2008

uss'ooo Us$'000

Neither past due nor impaired 1,324 390
Less than one month past due 646 761
1 to 3 months past due 729 8492
>3 months past due 90 13
Total amounts past due 1,465 1,666
Total 2,789 2,656

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide range of customers for
whom there was no recent history of default

Recewvables that were past due but not imparred relate to a number of independent
cusitomers that have a good track record with the Group Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance 1s necessary i respect of these balances
as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances are considered

fully recoverable The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances
(b) Impairment of trade receivables
Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recoerded using an allowance account

unless the Group s sausfied that recovery of the amount 1s remote, In which case the
impairment [oss 1s written off against trade recewvables directly (see note 2{(k)}
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed 1n United States dollars)

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

{b) Impairment of trade receivables (Continued)

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the year 1s as follows

2009 2008

Us$'000 Us$'000

At 1 January 65 5
Impairment loss recognised 21 60
At 31 December 86 65

Included 1n the allowance for doubtful debts are indmwidually impaired trade debtors with
an aggregate balance of US$86,000 (2008 US$65,000) that are 1n financial difficulties The
Group does not hold any colfateral over these balances

18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Group Company

2009 2008 2009 2008

US5°'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us3'000

Cash in hand and at bank 2,165 780 11 2
2009 2008 2009 2008

Currency us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
Hong Kong Daollars 1,344 38 2 -
Chinese Renminbs 812 740 - ~
British Pound 9 2 9 2
2,165 780 1" 2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

For the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in United States dollars)

Group Company

2009 2008 2009 2008

Us$’000 Us$'coo Us$'000 uUs3$'000

Trade payables 541 960 15 28

Other payables and sundry creditors 2,810 1,422 - -

Accruals 606 746 78 3

Amounts due to related companies 688 413 - -

(Note 26)

Amount due to immediate holding

company 673 366 - -

5,318 3,907 93 31

The average credit period on purchases of goods s 60 days The Group has financial risk

management policies in place to ensure that all payables are settled withun the credit imeframe
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in United States doflars)

20 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

21

2009 2008

Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
Group payments payments payments payments
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
Within 1 year 870 906 599 645
After 1 year but within 5 years 408 433 330 356
1,278 1,339 929 1,001
Less total future interest expenses (61) (72)
Present value of lease obl:gations 1,278 929

It 1s the Group's policy to lease certain of 1ts motor vehicles and fixtures and equipment under

finance leases The average lease term 15 2 years (2008 2 years) Interest rate underlying all

obligations under finance leases are fixed at respective contract dates ranging from 2 60% to

6 15% (2008 2 56% io 4 73%)

BANK LOAN

Group 2009 2008
Uss°000 Us$'000

Analysis of debt maturnity

Amounts payable and due within two to five years - 1,915

The bank loan last year was unsecured, with interest accruing at the fixed rate of 5 85% per

annum During the year, the Group disposed of its subsidiary holding this bank loan to a related

party as detaled in note 14
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Far the year ended 31 Becember 2009
(Expressed in United States dollars)

22 LOANS FROM FELLOW INVESTORS IN SUBSIDIARIES

23

The amount represents advances from MEDCL of approximately US$718,000 (2008 US$718,000)
The amount advanced from MEDCL 15 unsecured, interest free and is not repayable within next
year Last year another amount advanced from Walton Enterprise Limited of approximately
Us$69,000 was assigned 1o a related party this year upon disposal of subsidianes of the Group as
mentioned In note 14

DEFERRED TAXATION

The components of the Group's deferred tax (assetsiliabilities recogrused in the consolidated
balance sheet and the movements during the year are as follows

Accumulated

temporary
difference
on tax Tax
deprectation losses Total
Us$'000 Uss'000 Us$'000
At 1 January 2008, 31 December 2008 and

1 January 2009 - - -
Chargedficredited) to profit or loss 149 8n 68
At 31 December 2009 149 (81 68

No deferred tax i1s recognised on the unremitted earnings of the overseas subsidianes, as no
dividend payments to the UK parent company are expected to be made in the foreseeable future

At 31 December 2009, the Group has unused tax losses of US$692,000 (2008 US$665,000)
avallable for offset against future profits A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
UsS$492,000 (2008 US3nil) of such fosses No deferred tax assets has been recognised in respect
of the remaining US$200,000 (2008 US$665,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams The unrecognised tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely

YINGGAQ Annuzl Report 2009 YINGGAO HOLDINGS PLC

57



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in Umted States dollars)

24 SHARE CAPITAL AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

(a) Share capital

2009 2008
Number £'000 Number £'000
Aythonsed

Ordinary shares of 0 Sp each 30,000,600,000 150,000 30,000,000,000 150,000
Equivalent to Uss000 Us$'000
265,395 265,395
us$'000 uss'00o

Allotted, called up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of 0 5p each 1,978,895,139 14,922  1,978,895,139 14,922

(b} Capital management
The Group's main objective when managing capstal ts to provide returns to shareholders by
ensuring the Group will continue to trade in the foreseeable future The Group alsc aims to

maximise 1ts capital structure of debt and equity so as to minimise 1ts cost of capital

The Group manages I1ts capial with regard to the nsks inherent in the business and the
sector within which 1t operates by monitonng its gearing ratic on a regular basis

The Group considers its capital to include share capital, share premium, merger reserve,

exchange reserve and accumulated losses
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24 SHARE CAPITAL AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

(b} Caprtal management (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in United States dollars)

Net debt includes short and long-term borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents

Group 2009 2008

Uss$'000 Us$'000
Total debsz 8,298 8,233
Less Cash and cash equivalents {2.165) (780)
Net debt 6,133 7.453
Tota!l equity 36,147 30,009
Debt to capital ratio 17% 25%

The Group does not have any externally rmposed capital requirements

25 FINANCIAL RiSK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

The principal nsks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are credit nisk, liguidity nisk,

foreign currency nisk and interest rate risk The directors reviews and agrees policies for managing

each of these rnisks and these are surmmansed below These policies have been developed during

the current accounting period as a consequence of the Group’s expansion

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk 15 the potential financial loss resulung from the fadure of a customer or

counterparty in setting their financial and contractual obligations to the Group, as and when

they fall due

The Group’s primary exposure to credit nsk arises through its trade receivables The

management has a credit policy in place and expesure to credit risk 1s momtored on an

ongoing basis Other financial assets of the Group with exposure to credi nisk include cash

and deposiis that are placed with financal institutions wiich are regulated

At the balance sheet date, there was no significant concentration of credit risk
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2009
{Expressed in United States dollars)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy 1s to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity requirements to

ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable marketable secunties

and adequate commutted lines of funding from major financial institetions (0 meet 1ts

liguidity requirements in the short and longer term

The following table detaiis the remaining contractual maturities at the balance sheet date

of the Group's financial habilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows

(including interesi payments computed using contractual rates) and the earhest date the

Group can be required to pay

1009 i
Centractual wediscousted cish outflow "ot <0 oo =4 esh oudow

Consalidated Hor than {orsdne Hore thi

balance sheet Withn  year bt odaewe t st Frerbat
mng Tyearcron lessthan  More thin g lexam less the Mo than
Gtoup amount Total demard years Syears amaun Total £ mard len Sy
US55 S5 600 Uss 906 LS8 006 US§ 600 (ST S5 600 Use g Uss ael 1§ figd
Tz w e ayle 5318 §i8 §318 - - Ta? 1507 i) - -
ke oot el 1\m 1338 906 81 - Pz} 1601 R I -
Sk - - - - - 1y 1913 - - 1315

Lagrs teom ow rves s
nsbad e 3] ni - - il Ih 1) - - 11
i 1315 [ #2) 1] i 723 1610 L) 156 ]
2003 i
Cantractual undiseaunted cash outflow Lontractual i ed cash otlow

More than Nore tha-

Baknce theet Wihs  tyearbu Bdyve ve #Tn Ty bt
taryng 1yeat or on lessthan  Morethan ey Ty kst M
Company amount Totd demand years Syears anont Tatd g len YN
U55'00¢ 453600 US4 000 055000 VS5 000 US40 Us 000 U020 Ush g 516
Lade no cther cayable, 9 9 [ - - 3t 3 A - -
Anxrs &0 0 hea e HO ) 150 150 - - 115 1910 136 - -
41 193] {11 - - 1541 1847 197 - -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2009
{Expressed in United States dollars)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

{c)

{d)

Foreign currency risk

The Group's businesses include revenue and the expenses which are prnapally conducted in
Chinese Renminbi {"RMB”) through :ts subsidiaries in the PRC Foreign currency risk mainly
anses from recognised assets and habilities and net investments in {oreign operations

The Group did not use any forward contract or currency borrowing to hedge 1ts exposure
to foreign currency risk However, the directors wil monitor the related foreign currency
exposure closely and will constder hedaing sigmficant foreign currency exposures should the
need anse in the future

No entity 1n the Group has material assets and liabilites denominated in currency other than

the functional currency of that entity, therefore no matenal foreign exchange risk anses

Interest rate risk

Group borrowings are held in local currencies Current interest-bearing loans are at fixed
rates The Group’s polcy for future borrowings will be to take floating rates unless fixed rate
finance 1s available at particularly attractive rates

The Group 15 exposed to far value interest rate nsk as 1ts loan borrowings and obligations
under finance leases are at a fixed rate Borrowings from fellow investors 1n subsidianies
are on an interest free basis The Group monitors closely its interest rate exposure and wall
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should the need arise in the future

The Company incurs no significant interess rate nisk as it does not have any hability to bank
or other borrowings alike
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2009
{Expressed in United States doilars)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

(d) Interest rate nisk (Continued)

(1} Interest rate profile

The interest rate nisk profile of the Group’s financial hatilhities for the years ended 31

December 2009 and 2008 are as follows

Fixed rate
Fixed rate weighted
weighted average
average period for
interest  which rate
Total Interest-free Fixed rate rate at is fixed
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 % Years
2009
Obligations under
finance leases 1,278 16 1,262 4 2
Loans from fellow
investors in
subsidiaries 718 718 - - N/A
1,996 734 1,262
2008
Bank loan 1,915 - 1,915 585 1
Obligations under
finance feases 929 8 921 4 2
Loans from fellow
Investors in
subsidiaries 787 787 - - N/A
3,631 795 2,836

(1) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2009, 1t s estmated that a general increase/decrease of 100 basis

points in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, would decrease/increase
the Group’s profit and equity by approximately US$13,000 {2008 Us$28,000)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2009
{Expressed in United Staies dollars)

25 FINANCIAL RiISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

{e) Categories of finanaal instruments

Group Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
Us$'000 Us3$'C00 US$'000 us$’'0a0
Financial assets
Avallable-for-sale investments - 12 - -
Loan and recervables
— Trade receivables and
other receivables
(excluding prepayments) 7,928 7.518 295 120
- Cash and cash equivalents 2,165 780 1 2
10,093 8,310 306 122
Financial habiltties
Financial liabihities
at amortised cost
— Trade and other payables 5318 3,907 93 EX
— Amounts due to
subsidiaries - - 2,520 1,916
- Borrowings 1,996 3,631 - -
7,314 7,538 2,613 1,947

(f) Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments carried at cost or amortised cost
are nat matenally different from their fair values as at 31 Dacember 2005 and 2008
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in United States dotlars)

26 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

{b)

Transactions with key management personnel

All members of key management personnel are the directors of the Company, and therr

remuneration 15 disclosed in note 8

Transactions with other related parties

Group

The Group had the following matenal transactions which were carned out on an arm's

length basis with refated parties during the year

Notes Nature 2009 2008

Us$'000 U5$'000

0] Agency charge paid by the Group 66 77
Barging services cost paid by the Group 3,137 -
Barging services income received by the Group 3,722 -
Disposals of praperty, plant and equipment 323 -

() Gain on disposal of subsidianes 6,598 -

Notes

10} Services provided by companies witn significant influence These ceased to be related parties of the Group on

18 September 2009
() Details of the disposal of subsidiaries to WFL during the year are set out :n note 14

Balances with related parties are disclosed in the balance sheet and in notes 17 and 19
Company

The Company had the following matenal transactions which were carried out on an arm's
length basis with related parties during the year

2009 2008

Uss$‘000 Us$'000

Management fee income received from 2 subsidiary 157 154
Management fee paid to a subsidiary 78 72
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2009
(Expressed in United States dollars)

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At 31 December 2009, the Group's total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases are payable as follows

2009 2008
US$ 000 Us$'000

Leases which expire
—In the next year 181 354
—n the second to fifth years 782 1,089
963 1,443

The Group (s the lessee In respect of a number of properties held under operating leases The
leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to S years, at the end of which period all terms are
renegotiated None of the leases includes contingent rentals

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group’s capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2008 in respect of the acquisition

of property, plant and equipment in the financial statements are as follows

2009 2008
us$'000 Us$°'000
Contracted, but not provided for 803 740
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2009
{Expressed in United States dollars)

29 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

On 23 July 1998, a subsidiary of the Company, KCT, gave a guarantee for RMB50 million
(equivaient to approximately US$5 9 million) in favour of the Huangpu 8ranch of the Industry and
Commercial Bank of China for banking faciities granted to HEDCL, a fellow nvestor in KCT and
its ultimate controlling party, Guangzhou Huangpu Foreign Trade Group Company Limited and
secured aver their equity interests in KCT HEDCL was unable to repay the loans due to the bank
The bank took action against KCT to enforce the guaraniee for the outstanding loan

On 9 November 1999, KCT gave a guarantee for RMB18 muliion (equivalent to approximately
US$2 1 milhen) in favour of Nangang Rural Credit Co-operation Bank for banking facilities granted
to MEDCL, a fellow investor in KCT, secured over 1ts equity interests in KCT MEDCL was unable to
repay the outstanding loan

On 27 September 2001, the Guangzhou Law Court delivered an order and notice that the
guarantees above were invalid and MEDCL's equity interest in KCT was frozen

Based on legal advice, the equity interests had no matenal impact on the operations of KCT and
the directors consider that no provision s required

KCT maintains that the guarantees given were invalid on the following grounds
(1} such guarantees did not have approval from the board of directors of KCT,

() 1n accordance with the law of the People’s Republic of China, the board of directors and the
management of KCT cannot give KCT's properties for guarantees to its shareholder, and

() the controlling party of HEDCL has not held a valid business licence since 1998 and ceased
operations 1n 1999 1n accardance with the banking regulations of the People’s Republic
of China, the bank cannot lend money to enterprises which do not have a vabd business
licence

The legal proceedings are finalhzed on November 2009 The |unsdiction said that the loan

agreement was vold because 1t was illegal and accordingly, the guarantees contract were also
invalid

YINGGAQ HOLDINGS PLC  Annual Report 2008 YINGGAQ




29

30

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2009
{Expressed in United Staies dollars)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Furthermore, KLHL, the Company's parent company, has indemnified the Group against any loss
KCT will suffer should the guarantees be enforceable

Accordingly, the directors are of the opinion that no provision should be made 1n the financal
statements for any possible claim from the bank in respect of the hiigation

Save as disclosed above, the Group does not have any matertal cantingent habidities as at balance
sheet date

ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY
The dwectors consider that Chin Dynasty Foundation Limited {*CDFL"), a company tncorporated in
the Briush Virgin tslands 1s the ulumate holding company CDFL 1s controlled by the Chin Dynasty

Fund No group financial statements for CDFL are published

The Chin Dynasty Fund 1s a discretionary trust where Mr Qin Shun Chao s the settler Members of

Mr Qin’s family are the potential beneficiaries of the trust

The Company's immediate parent company i1s KLHL, a company mcorporated in the Briush Virgin
Islands
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice 1s hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at 530 pm on

Wednesday, 30 June 2010 at 2 Bloemsbury Street, London WCIB 3ST for the purpose of transacting the

following business

ORDINARY BUSINESS

To receive and adopt the directors’ report and financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2009

2 To re-elect LEUNG Suk Ching, Angela as a director of the Company
3 To re-elect FENG Yue Ying as a director of the Company
4 To re-elect CHAN fing Kwan as a director of the Company
5 To re-elect LIV Sheng Rong as an independent non-executive director of the Company
[ To re-elect David Thomas as an independent non-executive director of the Cempany
7 To re-appoint Baker Tily UK Audit LLP, Chartered Accountants as auvditors of the Company to hold
office untl the next General Meeting at which financial statements are laid before the Company
and that therr remuneration be fixed by the directars
By order of the Board
CHAN Kat Ching
Company Secretary
2 June 2010

Registered cffice

2 Bloomsbury Street
London W(C1B 35T

Naotes

A shareholder enitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint one or more proxies te attend and, on a polf vo~e on
his behalf A proxy need not be a member of tne Company

A form of proxy 1s enclosed with this notice for your use in respect of the business set out above To be effective the form of
proxy together with tre pewer of attorney or cther authanty (f any) under which it 1s signed (or a natary certified or an office
copy of such power of authority) must be lodged at the Cempany s Registrars  PXS 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham 8R3 4TU
at least forty-eignit nours before the ume appointed for the meeting
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